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First Circuit holds that bridging statute, 28 U.S.C.A. §2461(c), allows government to rely upon civil forfeiture provisions to obtain forfeiture in a criminal case.  (550)  Defendant was convicted of four counts of bank fraud directed against federally insured banks, 18 U.S.C. §1344. Facing bankruptcy in the summer of 2000, he concocted a false resume for his stay-at-home wife, forging documents to make her appear to be a well-paid executive in a (sham) technology company, and convinced a lender to extend a mortgage of $800,000 in her name to purchase a mansion in Hull, Massachusetts. He then repeatedly refinanced the property for larger and larger amounts, each time paying down outstanding previous loans and retaining the surplus or "cash out" amount. He persuaded lenders to extend the loans on the basis of false representations and fabricated documents, including tax forms, showing his wife to be earning from $200,000 to over $1 million per year. The last of these loans was secured after the government filed a three-count information charging the defendant with bank fraud in connection with the loans, and then the wife and her children fled to Norway. Approximately $273,000 was wired to Norway and $47,000 withdrawn from ATMs in Massachusetts and Norway during the last few months.  The government sought criminal forfeiture pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §981(a)(1)(C) and 28 U.S.C.A. §2461(c) of the Hull property and $579,805.73 in proceeds traceable to the final loan. Defendant argued that the two forfeiture statutes invoked by the government do not allow the intended forfeiture to be implemented in a criminal proceeding, but rather only in a separate civil proceeding.  The civil forfeiture statute, §981(a)(1)(C), subjects to forfeiture any property which constitutes or is derived from proceeds traceable to a violation of Section 1344; by contrast, the criminal forfeiture statute, §982(a)(2)(B), subjects to forfeiture any property constituting, or derived from, proceeds the person obtained directly or indirectly, as the result of such a violation.

The defendant argued that the property forfeited was obtained by his wife and therefore is not property that he ("the person") ever obtained. Therefore, he concluded, the property was open to a civil forfeiture action but not a criminal one. The government answered by saying that the bridging statute, 28 U.S.C.A. §2461(c), allowed it to rely upon the civil forfeiture provision in the criminal case. The statute, as it stood between 2000 and 2006, provided that if any person is charged in an indictment or information with such violation but no specific statutory provision is made for criminal forfeiture upon conviction, the Government may include the forfeiture in the indictment or information in accordance with the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, and upon conviction, the court shall order the forfeiture of the property.  Defendant argued that Section 2461(c) does not apply because a "specific statutory provision is made for criminal forfeiture upon conviction," namely, §982, which expressly applies to violations of the bank fraud statute. The government responded that §982 was not available in this case on Defendant’s own premise that the forfeited property was not his own, and therefore it could use the bridging statute to enforce §981 in the criminal case, to fill the gap between criminal and civil forfeiture by making criminal forfeiture available in every criminal case that the criminal forfeiture statute does not reach but for which civil forfeiture is legally authorized.  On appeal, the court held that it seemed that Congress intended for Section 2461 to apply based on the legislative history of the bridging statute.  U.S. v. Edelkind, 2006 WL 3072195 (1st Cir. 2006) (Oct. 31, 2006).

2nd Circuit dismisses forfeiture counts based on time-barred money laundering charges. (550) Defendants were convicted of fraud and money laundering charges arising from a scheme to defraud Lloyd’s of London by staging a phony robbery of their jewelry business. The government obtained the original indictment in the case alleging fraud within the statute of limitations, but later filed superseding indict​ments adding a forfeiture count and money laundering counts as to some of which the statute of limitations had expired. The Second Circuit held that a superseding indictment relates back to the date of the original indictment only if it does not “broaden or substantially amend the char​ges.” Here the addition of money laundering charges substantially increased the defen​dants’ possible penalties. The court ordered the offend​ing money laundering counts dismissed, as well as a forfeiture count based on the dis​missed money laundering counts. U.S. v. Zvi, 168 F.3d 49 (2d Cir. 1999).xe "U.S. v. Zvi, 168 F.3d 49 (2d Cir. 1999)."
2nd Circuit holds forfeiture of assets proper when al​leged in indictment, even if not in bill of particulars. (550) Forfeiture of assets under RICO is proper when the indictment so al​leges, even if the bill of particulars fails to specify a statutory ground for the forfeiture. Be​cause the defen​dant's motion for a bill of particulars only re​quested a listing of the prop​erties and not a specifica​tion of the govern​ment's legal theory, there was no error in fail​ing to charge the jury that the defendant ac​quired his interests through his racketeering activity without spec​ifying a par​ticular statutory basis. U.S. v. Por​celli, 865 F.2d 1352 (2d Cir. 1989).xe "U.S. v. Por​celli, 865 F.2d 1352 (2d Cir. 1989)."
3rd Circuit rules indictment did not vio​late mini​mal notice standard of Rule 7(c)(2). (550) The 3rd Circuit rejected de​fendants' claim that the criminal forfeiture indictments with regard to their interests in a corporation violated the minimal notice stan​dards of Fed. R. Crim. P. 7(c)(2) so as to ren​der the forfei​ture order ineffective as to that corporation. Al​though Rule 7(c)(2) does not require an exact or de​tailed tracking of §1963 in the indictment, the court was concerned with a slackening of this stan​dard. Nevertheless, absent prejudice to the defen​dants in light of uncontested de facto notice, and in light of the indictment's clear reference to the theory of forfeiture alleged, the indict​ment adequately noti​fied the defendants that the government's forfeiture allegation ex​tended to their interest in the corpora​tion. U.S. v. Sarbello, 985 F.2d 716 (3d Cir. 1993).xe "U.S. v. Sarbello, 985 F.2d 716 (3d Cir. 1993)."
4th Circuit okays forfeiting cars as proceeds ere indictment alleged facilitation. (550) Defendant pleaded guilty to drug trafficking crimes and agreed to forfeit certain vehicles. Defendant’s girlfriend challenged the forfeiture in a third-party claim under 21 U.S.C. §853. She argued, inter alia, that the district court erred in ordering forfeiture of the cars on the theory that they were purchased with drug trafficking proceeds when the indictment alleged they were forfeitable because used to facilitate drug trafficking. The Fourth Circuit held that the court was not limited by the theory asserted in the indictment. “[W]hether the property was forfeited because it facilitated [defendant’s] drug activities or was purchased from drug proceeds is irrelevant, as either prong justifies the forfeiture.” U.S. v. Holmes, 133 F.3d 918 (4th Cir. 1998) (table) (unpublished).xe "U.S. v. Holmes, 133 F.3d 918 (4th Cir. 1998) (table) (unpublished)."
4th Circuit says indictment that incorrectly referred to a company as sole proprietorship rather than corporation sufficiently identified property to be forfeited. (550) Defendant sold controlled substances from his drugstore without a prescription. In addition to other penalties, the government sought forfeiture of the store under 21 U.S.C. §853(a). Defendant argued that the indictment did not provide proper notice of the forfeiture because the forfeiture count impro​per​ly referred to his company as a sole proprietorship rather than a corporation. The Fourth Circuit found the argument meritless, since it was plain from the outset that the government was seeking forfeiture of the drugstore and its assets. The indictment precise​ly described the name of the store and its location. There was no chance that anyone could be misled by the reference to the company as a sole proprietorship. U.S. v. U.S. v. Tanner, 61 F.3d 231 (4th Cir. 1995).xe "U.S. v. Tanner, 61 F.3d 231 (4th Cir. 1995)."
5th Circuit upholds indictment's specifi​cation of prop​erty subject to forfeiture. (550) The 5th Circuit rejected defen​dant's contention that the indictment failed to ad​vise him of the precise extent of the forfeiture sought by the govern​ment in violation of both Fed. R. Crim. P. 7(c)(2) and 31(e). Count 2 of the indictment stated that the government sought forfeiture of the "Diamond Oaks Motor Company, 4249 Denton Highway, Halton City, Texas" and "$5,030 in U.S. currency." This description of defendant's car lot business was sufficient to notify de​fendant that the government sought forfeiture of all of the company's assets. Moreover, count 3 of the indict​ment alleged how the government intended to link the busi​ness both to money-laundering and to the pro​ceeds of the unlawful activity. This informa​tion was more than sufficient to allow defen​dant to marshal his defense. U.S. v. Puma, 937 F.2d 151 (5th Cir. 1991).xe "U.S. v. Puma, 937 F.2d 151 (5th Cir. 1991)." 

5th Circuit reverses district court, holding post-judgment order to dispose of evidence improper where government fails to follow statutory requirements for criminal forfeiture. (550) Defendant was convicted of drug and weapons offenses. The government filed a post-judgment motion to dispose of property seized in connection with the charges. The court held that government was not entitled to an order of seizure where the indictment did not allege that the firearms at issue were subject to criminal forfeiture, no criminal forfeiture judgment was entered in the case, and the government failed to follow any statutory requirements for criminal forfeiture. United States v. Posey, 217 F.3d 282 (5th Cir. 2000).

9th Circuit finds forfeiture count tracking language of statute does not satisfy Fed. R. Crim. P 7(c)(2). (550) Defendants were charged with substantive RICO and RICO conspiracy violations, as well as a RICO forfeiture count pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1963. Both the substantive and forfeiture counts of the indictment essentially tracked the language of the RICO statute without providing much factual detail. The district court dismissed both the substantive and forfeiture counts on the ground of lack of specificity. The Ninth Circuit reversed the dismissal of the substantive counts, finding that indictment language largely tracking the statute “provide[d] defendants sufficient notice of what they are charged with.” By contrast, the court of appeals upheld dismissal of the forfeiture count. Fed. R. Crim. P. 7(c)(2) re​quires that the indictment “allege the extent of the interest or property subject to forfeiture.” The rule’s particularity requirement was not met by an indictment which merely sought forfeiture of all property acquired, maintained, or derived from racketeering activity. [Ed Note: Other courts have reached the opposite result. See, e.g., U.S. v. Diaz, 190 F.3d 1247 (11th Cir. 1999).] U.S. v. Luong, 201 F.3d 445 (9th Cir. 1999) (table) (unpublished).xe "U.S. v. Luong, 201 F.3d 445 (9th Cir. 1999) (table) (unpublished)."
11th Circuit finds criminal forfeiture count does not constructively amend substantive charges of indictment. (550) Defendant pled guilty to a violation of 21 U.S.C. §860 (distributing or manufacturing drugs near a school), and then sought reduction of his Sentencing Guidelines offense level pursuant to the so-called “safety valve” provision, U.S.S.G. §5C1.2. However, §5C1.2 does not apply to violations of §860. Defendant attempted to argue that the forfeiture count in his indictment referred to violations of 21 U.S.C. §841, to which the safety valve can apply. However, the Eleventh Circuit held that the forfeiture count did not work a constructive amendment of the substantive count to which defendant pled guilty. He was not eligible for a safety valve reduction. U.S. v. Anderson, 200 F.3d 1344 (11th Cir. 2000).xe "U.S. v. Anderson, 200 F.3d 1344 (11th Cir. 2000)."
11th Circuit says Rule 7(c)(2) permits post-verdict designation of property to be forfeited. (550) The government successfully prosecuted defendant on drug charges. The indictment also sought criminal forfeiture of “property constitut​ing and derived from” drug proceeds, and “property used and intended to be used” to facilitate the crime, but otherwise identified no particular property as subject to forfeiture. After the jury found defendant guilty on the substantive counts of the indictment, the government advised defendant and the court for the first time that it intended to seek forfeiture of his residence. Eleven days later, the court held a forfeiture trial (presumably before the same jury) and the jury returned a verdict of forfeiture against the house. The Eleventh Circuit held that the belated identification of the forfeitable property: (1) did not violate Fed. R. Crim. P. 7(c)(2), which states that “no judgment of forfeiture may be entered in a criminal proceed​ing unless the indictment … alleges the extent of the interest or property subject to forfeiture,” and (2) did not violate the Due Process Clause. In effect, the court held that a forfeiture indictment is sufficient under Rule 7(c)(2) if it tracks the language of the forfeiture statute and mentions no particular property or interest in property whatever. Senior District Judge Cook filed a spirited dissent. [Ed. Note: The court’s opinion is both surprising and rather disturbing, as it eviscerates Rule 7(c)(2). Moreover, telling a defendant which property the government plans to forfeit after the guilty verdict hardly seems adequate notice, even where, as here, the court gave defendant eleven days after the guilty verdict to prepare to meet the forfeiture allegations.] U.S. v. Diaz, 190 F.3d 1247 (11th Cir. 1999).xe "U.S. v. Diaz, 190 F.3d 1247 (11th Cir. 1999)."
D.C. Circuit holds that the government may seek criminal forfeiture money judgments and forfeiture based on mail and wire fraud violations. (530) (550) After a jury found the defendant guilty of substantive charges and he waived his right to have a jury determine forfeiture, the government decided that, in lieu of seeking specific property from appellant, it would pursue a $1.5 million money judgment. The defendant did not challenge the amount of money the government sought to recover, but contested the government's ability to claim forfeiture on the mail and wire fraud counts and the government's request for a money judgment in the amount of the forfeited property. The district court held that forfeiture was appropriate on the embezzlement charges, but that criminal forfeiture was unavailable on the mail and wire fraud counts. The appellate court noted that during the time period encompassing the defendant's trial and sentencing, 28 U.S.C. ( 2461( provided that if no specific statutory provision is made for criminal forfeiture upon conviction, the court shall order forfeiture in accordance with the procedures in 21 U.S.C. (853. (2461(c) was since amended so that its application to general mail and wire fraud charges can no longer be disputed. However, the newly amended statute was not in effect when the defendant was sentenced. The government argued that (2461(c) required the Court to order criminal forfeiture where a civil forfeiture is authorized, and 18 U.S.C. (981(a)(1)(c) supplied the necessary authorization. (981(a)(1)(c) subjects property to civil forfeiture if it is obtained in violation of various listed statutes or if it is obtained as a result of any offense constituting (specified unlawful activity( (as defined in 18 U.S.C. (1956(c)(7)), and (1956(c)(7)(A) defines (specified unlawful activity( as including any act or activity constituting an offense listed in 18 U.S.C. (1961(1). Finally (1961(1)(B) -part of the (RICO( statute - defines (racketeering activity( to include the mail and wire fraud statutes. The appellate court agreed, finding that criminal forfeiture is available for general mail and wire fraud violations, not merely those affecting financial institutions. (2461(c)(s plain language permits criminal forfeiture for general mail fraud because 1) (981(a)(1)(c) authorizes civil forfeiture for general mail fraud; and 2) no statutory provision specifically authorizes criminal forfeiture for general mail fraud. The court further held that nothing in the relevant statutes suggests that money judgments are forbidden, but that the open-ended nature of an order forfeiting proceeds of an offense is implicit in both the mandatory nature of forfeiture and in the procedures Congress created for locating forfeitable property and for satisfying the forfeiture judgment with substitute assets. U.S. v. Day, 524 F.3d 1361 (D.C. Circuit 2008)(May 9, 2008).

Alabama district court holds that 28 U.S.C. §2461(c) permits government to include 18 U.S.C. §981 civil forfeiture provision in indictment forfeiture count, because Congress intended §2461(c) to authorize criminal forfeiture for offenses such as mail and wire fraud, as long as there is a corresponding civil forfeiture provision. (520, 550) After defendants were convicted of mail fraud and wire fraud, the government moved for a preliminary order of forfeiture of property pursuant to Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 32.2(b)(2). Defendants opposed, arguing first that the court did not have jurisdiction because the indictments referenced 18 U.S.C §982, the criminal forfeiture statute, which includes wire and mail fraud “affecting a financial institution,” although there had been no evidence that any bank or financial institution suffered any loss in this action. Defendants further argued that both indictments contained claims for substitute assets, a provision available under §982, but not available under §981, the civil forfeiture statute. The court noted that 28 U.S.C. §2461(c) authorizes criminal forfeiture where “a forfeiture is authorized in connection with a violation of an Act of Congress,” such as the Civil Forfeiture Statute, 18 U.S.C. §981, which permits forfeiture of proceeds from the crimes identified in 18 U.S.C. §1956(c)(7), which in turn includes the list of crimes set forth in 18 U.S.C. §1961(1), including “mail fraud,” not only mail fraud affecting a financial institution. Thus, under the plain terms of §2461(c), criminal forfeiture for mail and wire fraud is permitted. Although only a criminal provision exists for mail and wire fraud where “special circumstances” are present, §981 authorizes civil forfeiture for mail and wire fraud without the special circumstances that need to be present under §982. Therefore, the Court found that §2461(c) permits the government to include the civil provision in the indictment, and for the court to enter a preliminary order of criminal forfeiture upon conviction in accordance with the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure. Moreover, the legislative history made it clear that when Section 2461(c) was enacted as part of the Civil Asset Forfeiture Reform Act (“CAFRA”), Congress intended §2461(c) to authorize criminal forfeiture for offenses such as mail and wire fraud, as long as there is a corresponding civil forfeiture provision. The court added that no other result seems reasonable, because Section 2461(c) saves the parties the time and expense of litigating both a criminal and civil action, or re-litigating the same issues under the same standards. It also furthers the intent of Congress, that is, to allow for criminal forfeiture whenever civil forfeiture is available. In addition, substitute assets can be forfeited under §981; since the substitute asset provision in the criminal forfeiture law is found at Section 413 of the Controlled Substances Act, 21 U.S.C. §853(p), and §2461 provides that the court shall order the forfeiture of property in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 413. U.S. v. Russo, 2007 WL 505056 (S.D. Ala. 2007) (February 14, 2007).

Georgia district court denies motion to dismiss forfeiture count because government began administrative forfeiture proceedings within statutory 120-day time period and indictment was filed within five years of the administrative proceedings. (550)  ATF agents executed a search warrant on August 30, 2006, and seized 61 firearms. On January 16, 2007, the Government filed a complaint against 44 of the seized firearms asserting that Defendant failed to maintain properly required records for all acquisitions and disposition of firearms and ammunition, and Defendant filed a claim. On March 8, 2007, an indictment was returned which did not include a forfeiture allegation. This indictment was dismissed, and a second indictment was returned on November 9, 2007, and included a forfeiture allegation. Defendant asserted that the forfeiture allegation contained in the indictment should be dismissed because that allegation was not filed within 120 days after the firearms were seized. The government contended that the 120-day time limitation upon which Defendant relied relates to civil forfeitures, not a criminal forfeiture. It asserted that Defendant received a notice of forfeiture on September 12, 2006, and ATF published notice of its intent to forfeit the firearms, and initiation of the administrative proceeding satisfied the 120-day rule contained in 18 U.S.C.  §924(d)(1), and that it could file a judicial action within the five-year statute of limitations period. Section 924(d)(1) provides that “any action or proceeding for the forfeiture of firearms or ammunition shall be commenced within one hundred and twenty days of such seizure.” The court found that the “any action or proceeding” language was ambiguous, and thus said it must look at the entire statute to determine its meaning. It appeared that bringing administrative proceedings first is a favored practice, as these proceedings decrease the need for the government to bring judicial proceedings, and that successive, rather than concurrent, proceedings also spare claimants from the burden of participating in two forums simultaneously. Also, if Congress intended for all proceedings-both administrative and judicial-to commence within 120 days, it could have specified this by using the word “all” in place of “any in section 924(d)(1). The court concluded that ATF began administrative forfeiture proceedings well within the 120-day time period set forth in the statute, and the government's indictment was filed within five years of the administrative proceedings. Thus, the magistrate judge recommended that Defendant's motion to dismiss be denied.  U.S. v. McDaniel, 2008 WL 1816455 (S.D.Ga. 2008) (April 22, 2008).

Maine district court denies defendant a jury trial on criminal forfeiture issues because the government sought only an in personam money judgment, not forfeiture of specific property. (550) Defendant's pretrial motions were convicted at a jury trial of conspiracy to use interstate commerce facilities to promote prostitution and conspiracy to commit money laundering, inter alia. Defendant requested jury trial on criminal forfeiture issues. The issue was whether a defendant has a right to a jury trial on criminal forfeiture issues when the government seeks only an in personam money judgment, not forfeiture of specific property. Before the jury was asked to deliberate on the guilt phase, Defendant asked for an instruction to the jury regarding forfeiture, arguing he had a constitutional right to such a determination, and that proof beyond a reasonable doubt was required. The court held that Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 32.2, which became effective December 1, 2000 and displaced previous criminal forfeiture procedures, does not create a right to a jury trial where the government seeks only a money judgment, not specific property. According to the Advisory Committee Notes for the 2000 Rule Adoption, “the defendant has no constitutional right to have the jury determine any part of the forfeiture,” nevertheless the Committee “decided to retain the right for the parties . . . to have the jury determine whether the government has established the requisite statutory nexus between the offense and the property to be forfeited.” Rule 32.2(b)(1) instructs the court to determine “[a]s soon as practicable after a verdict ... of guilty” “what property is subject to forfeiture under the applicable statute,” and clearly differentiates how to proceed when the government seeks forfeiture of a particular asset from how to proceed when the government seeks a personal money judgment: “If the government seeks forfeiture of specific property, the court must determine whether the government has established the requisite nexus between the property and the offense. If the government seeks a personal money judgment, the court must determine the amount of money that the defendant will be ordered to pay.” Thus, the “nexus” determination applies only to forfeiture of a particular asset. Correspondingly, Fed.R.Crim.P. 32.2(b)(4) provides that the only jury trial right recognized by the Rule is for that nexus determination: “Upon a party's request in a case in which a jury returns a verdict of guilty, the jury must determine whether the government has established the requisite nexus between the property and the offense committed by the defendant.” Rule 32.2 makes no reference whatsoever to a jury's role in a personal money judgment. Thus, Defendant had no constitutional right to a jury trial on the criminal forfeiture. U.S. v. Reiner, ___ F.Supp.2d ___, 2005 WL 2542625 (D. Me. 2005) (Oct 12, 2005).

Minnesota district court grants criminal forfeiture of proceeds of general mail fraud, and finds indictment allegations provided adequate notice to defendants that the prosecution will seek forfeiture of specific property. (550) The prosecution filed an 18-count indictment against defendants alleging mail fraud, conspiracy, money laundering, and false tax returns. Defendant Afremov moved pretrial to dismiss and limit the forfeiture allegations, arguing that (1) the forfeiture improperly relied on the civil forfeiture statute because the alleged mail fraud did not affect a financial institution; (2) the allegations exceed the permissible scope of the civil forfeiture statute because they sought property that is not derived from proceeds traceable to the alleged mail fraud; and (3) the allegations regarding his residence failed to connect the home with the alleged money laundering charges. He first argued that criminal forfeiture of proceeds derived from alleged mail fraud is available only if the mail fraud affects a financial institution. The court determined that the Eighth Circuit previously rejected that argument, and held that criminal forfeiture for mail fraud is specifically authorized when special circumstances are present, such as when the mail fraud affects a financial institution. Thus, 18 U.S.C. §2461(c) allows for criminal forfeiture of the proceeds of general mail fraud. As to Afremov’s claims that the forfeiture allegations were insufficient, the court noted first that Rules 32.2(a) and 7(c)(2), which set forth the basic pleading and notice requirement for a criminal forfeiture, are not intended to require that an itemized list of property to be forfeited appear in the indictment, or a substantive allegation in which the property sought must be described in detail. The forfeiture paragraphs of the indictment provided that defendants “shall forfeit ... all right, title and interest in any property constituting, or derived from, proceeds traceable to the violations.” Those allegations also listed the various assets sought in connection with the mail fraud and money laundering charges, including Afremov's residence. Thus, the court found that these allegations provided adequate notice to the defendants that the prosecution will seek forfeiture of property in accordance with the underlying forfeiture statute. As to Afremov’s objection that the indictment failed to set forth any facts that connect the funds and property sought with the underlying mail fraud and money laundering charges, the court held that the absence of such factual allegations was not fatal to the forfeiture allegations, so long as the forfeiture satisfies the basic notice requirements of Rule 7(c)(2). Thus, the motion was denied. U.S. v. Afremov, 2007 WL 3237630 (D. Minn. 2007) (October 30, 2007).

New York District Court holds indictment seeking forfeiture of “all proceeds” of crime is sufficiently specific under Fed. R. Crim. P. 7(c)(2). (550) Defen​dants were indicted on a variety of charges related to drug trafficking, including a forfeiture count pursuant to 21 U.S.C. §853(a)(1). The forfeiture count named no particular property alleged to be forfeitable. Rather, it sought forfeiture of “any and all property constituting or derived from any proceeds obtained, directly or indirectly, as a result of” violations of §853(a)(1). Defendants challenged the forfeiture count on the ground that it was insufficiently specific under Fed. R. Crim. P. 7(c)(2), which requires that an indictment or information “shall allege the extent of the interest or property subject to forfeiture.” The district held that the indictment was sufficient because the “forfeiture counts track the language of [§853(a)(1)] almost word for word.” [Ed. Note: It is difficult to square this holding with Rule 7(c)(2), which plainly seems to impose a special requirement of specificity – precise allegations identifying the property and the nature of defendant’s ownership interest in it – on criminal forfeiture counts.] U.S. v. Benjamin, 72 F.Supp.2d 161 (W.D. N.Y. 1999).

Pennsylvania district court denies motion to strike notice of forfeiture because 28 U.S.C. §2461(c) is purely procedural and has no substantive effect on the class of cases for which forfeiture is available, authorizing the government to effect either civil or criminal forfeiture by including a notice of forfeiture in the indictment or information. (550) The defendant was arraigned on a four-count indictment charging him with insider trading. Included in the indictment was a notice of forfeiture pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §2461(c). The Government filed a notice of lis pendens against a home in Pennsylvania he and his wife purchased almost nine years prior to the earliest offense conduct alleged in the case. He thus moved to strike the notice of lis pendens and the notice of forfeiture. The Government agreed to remove the lis pendens. As to the notice of forfeiture, the newly amended §2461(c), which was in effect at the time of the defendant’s indictment, provides that if a person is charged in a criminal case with a violation of an Act of Congress for which the civil or criminal forfeiture of property is authorized, the Government may include notice of the forfeiture in the indictment or information pursuant to the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure. The defendant argued that, because the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is not an Act of Congress for which the civil or criminal forfeiture of property is authorized, §2461(c) did not apply in that case; that the particular statute under which a defendant is indicted rather than the nature of the offense controls whether forfeiture is available under §2461(c). The court read the new §2461(c) as purely procedural, authorizing the government to effect either civil or criminal forfeiture by including a notice of forfeiture in the indictment or information. It has no substantive effect on the class of cases for which forfeiture is available. The court stated that its reading of the revised statute has the effect of leaving the operation of §2461 largely unchanged. Thus, there can be no doubt that the crime, securities fraud, permits the government to seek civil forfeiture of the proceeds should he be convicted, because 18 U.S.C. §1961(1)(D) includes “fraud in the sale of securities,” a description that plainly encompasses the defendant's alleged criminal acts. The only question before the court was whether the government must file a separate civil action to effect that forfeiture or whether it can do so in the context of the criminal prosecution, and the court found that 28 U.S.C. §2461(c) allowed what the government did there. U.S. v. Heron, 2007 WL 1152656 (E.D. Pa. 2007) (April 17, 2007).

